
Finance Committee Agenda for 6-17-2021 2:30-4pm 

1. Minutes from May meeting 

2. April financials – DCC/ASM (EXHIBIT A) 

3. 2021 DCC/ASM Budget (EXHIBIT B) 

4. Financial Advisor Recommendations (EXHIBIT C provided at the meeting) 

5. May financials - CFA (EXHIBIT D) 

6. 2021 Budget Update (EXHIBIT E) 

7. Procurement Policy (EXHIBIT F) 

8. Other items as determined by members 



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES  
AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 25, 2021 11:00 AM  

Via Telephonic/Electric Means 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS – Finance Committee Meeting 
 
PRESENT: Sean Fraunfelter, LaShea Lofton, Kevin Weckesser,  
 
ESCUSED: Tom Whelley 
 
GUESTS:  Pam Plageman, Executive Director 
       Kelly Smith, MCCFA Contractor 
                    
I. Roll Call   

Mr. Fraunfelter called the meeting to order at 11:02 AM and called the roll. 
 

II. Minutes from April Meeting (Exhibit A) 
Mr. Fraunfelter asked members of the Committee if they had any edits to the minutes. Hearing none, 
Mr. Fraunfelter called for a motion to approve the minutes.  

 
MOTION: It was then moved by Mr. Weckesser and seconded by Ms. Lofton and unanimously 
voted “to approve the April 15, 2021 Finance Committee meeting minutes as presented”.  
 

III. April Financials (Exhibit B) 
Mr. Fraunfelter presented the check report and current budget along with the actuals and variance. It 
was noted the Dayton Convention Center Operating account and the MCCFA Operating account are 
both now active. Ms. Cheryl Patterson is the Finance Director with ASM Global and will assist with 
the updated expenses to reflect on the budget.  Mr. Fraunfelter also shared the Hotel/Motel Tax is 
now being collected for the month of April, however there were properties who either did not pay or 
sent their collections to the County for the month of March. The county will be sending the CFA 
roughly $11,000 of what was accidentally sent to them.  
 
Mr. Fraunfelter informed the committee the Actual Budget Report will continue to be updated and the 
July Board meeting will have an amendment to be considered.  
 
MOTION: It was then moved by Ms. Lofton and seconded by Mr. Weckesser and unanimously 
voted “to approve the April 2021 Financials as presented”.  

 
IV. Proposed Accounting Policy Amendment (Exhibit C) 

The current accounting process between ASM and MCCFA requires an amendment to the MCCFA 
accounting policy to keep both processes in alignment.  Mr. Fraunfelter informed the committee an 
added statement of adaptation explaining ASM has the check writing authority as the management 
company working as an agent of the CFA.  The process of writing a check for $15,000+ will still 



require Board Approval. Ms. Plageman noted ASM is aware of this guideline.  Ms. Lofton asked if 
these guidelines for ASM are in the Procurement Policy or in their contract.  Ms. Plageman will be 
sending this verbiage to the Committee.  
 
Mr. Weckesser asked how larger purchases that are broken into smaller increments of payments will 
be approved. Mr. Fraunfelter noted these payments will go before the Board.  Ms. Lofton & Mr. 
Weckesser asked about the current procurement policy as the Board should be making approval on 
the purchase and not the payment of the purchase.  Ms. Plageman stated Bricker & Eckler is currently 
reviewing this process and it should be completed soon.  
 
Mr. Fraunfelter and Ms. Plageman will reconvene and continue to edit the policy based on today’s 
conversation for approval during next month’s Finance Committee Meeting.  
 

V. Lease of Lift and Boom (Exhibit D) 
Ms. Plageman informed the Committee the DCC currently has two forklifts, one can be repaired and 
the other will need to be replaced. Ms. Plageman also noted the DCC is currently renting a Lift and a 
Boom for ongoing projects and maintenance such as painting, leaks, and repairs.  The MCCFA has 
received quotes from Miami Industrial Trucks, who is currently leasing the equipment to the Center.  
The main priority is to obtain a lease to own agreement for a Boom Lift.   
 
Mr. Weckesser noted the best financial option would be the 60-month lease to own as these payments 
are lower than the 36-month option along with a low interest rate.  Ms. Lofton asked what the life 
expectancy of these assets are which on average last about 20 years.  Ms. Plageman also noted during 
the time of the lease, this will cover all service calls and repairs. This will be presented in front of the 
Board during the July meeting as this long-term expense will be over $15,000.  

 
VI. Elevator Upgrades (Exhibit E) – ASM Capital Funds 

Ms. Plageman noted that ASM’s capital investment included the lobby and refurbishment of the two 
passenger elevators. She stated Oracle works closely with SnapCab who renovates the interior of 
elevator cabs and recommended them as a vendor. The quote the MCCFA received was $47,216 for 
both elevators, which does not include flooring. This expense will also need to go in front of the 
Board for approval.  
 
Mr. Weckesser asked if the MCCFA was able to obtain more quotes.  Ms. Plageman stated she will 
be reaching out to Oracle to see if they can source more vendors, however; SnapCab is a popular 
choice, and many companies do not do this line of work. Ms. Plageman stated she will make 
documentation if it is hard to find other local vendors or companies to inform the Board.  
 
 

VII. Other Business  
Ms. Plageman noted securing bond council for our purchases in imperative. She stated Mr. Walter 
Reynolds, Mr. Mike Burns and herself had a meeting yesterday to discuss and RFQ for Bond Council 
which will ideally be published by Friday, May 28, 2021. Once this is complete the MCCFA will 
gather proposals and present to the Finance Committee on the next meeting and have a 
recommendation for the Board.  
 



Ms. Plageman presented the HVAC quote from Air Force One, who is the current provider.  The 
technology of the chiller is no longer working efficiently and Air Force One is called to the Center 
often. There are two chillers in the Center both of which are over 20 years old, and one has been 
down for years and the current one operating has had many issues. To replace on of the chillers it 
would cost over $300,000, not including installation which will be another large expense. Replacing 
the chillers is in the master plan however in the meantime, the Center would like to get the second 
chiller repaired.  Air Force One has stated there is a line leaking that would cost around $25,000 to 
fix.  This is a critical need for the Center.  
 
Ms. Lofton stated there should be an emergency declaration in procurement policy if there isn’t 
already. This policy will allow one person to enact authority of purchasing during an emergency. Ms. 
Plageman stated there is language in the procurement policy and bylaws, will send out via email after 
the email.  
 
MOTION: It was motioned by Ms. Lofton and seconded by Ms. Weckesser, and unanimously 
approved to adjourn regular session at 11:49 AM 

 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 

The undersigned Chair of the Finance and Budget Committee of the Montgomery County 
Convention Facilities Authority hereby certifies that the foregoing is a true copy of the minutes of 
the April 15, 2021, meeting of the Board of Directors of said Convention Facilities Authority, as 
approved by the Board on May 25, 2021. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Chair of the Finance and Budget Committee 
Montgomery County Convention 
Facilities Authority 

 
 
 

    



 

 

EXHIBIT A 



[ [^rTrN 
ETN'ENTT'N EENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APRIL 30, 2O2L

Date Distributed: May 26,202L

Distribution:

MCCFA:

Pam Plageman

Sean Fraunfelter

ASM Global

John Page

Craig Liston



INDEX

Executive Department.

Operations Deparffnent..

Overhead

,..,.7

...,...'8

Food & Beverage Department.. .........10

Indirect Expense Detai1.......... ..........1I

AccountsPayableAging......... ......13



Dayton Convention Ccnter
Incomc Statement

For thc Four Monlhs Ending April 30, 2021

Current Monlh
Actual

Current Month Current Month
Prior Year

Year to Date
Actual

Year to Date
BudqetBudSet Variance Variance

Year to Da'te
Prior Year

Event lncome
Direct Event lncome

Ancillary lncome

Other Event lncome

Other Operating lncome
Retail Shop

Total Other Operating lncome

Adjusted Gross lncome

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits

Net Salaries and Benefits

Conlracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations
Food & Beverage Expense
Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Utilities

Total Operating Expenses

$7,821 $7,821

7,821
$0 $0 s7,821 $7,821 $0 $0

7,821 0 0 7,821 7,82'.1 0 0

7,821 7,821 7,821 7,8210 0 0

10,596
1,060

14,167
3,307

(3,571)
(2,247\

1 0,596
1,060

1 1,655

0
0

14,167 (3,s71)
3,307 (2,247\

17,474 (s,819)

0
0

11,6s5 '17,474 (s,819) 0 0

14,577
496
126
397

7,804
3,1 81

6,556

15,000
297

0
0

6,982
0

6,556

14,577
496
126
397

7,804
3,181
6,556

(423)
199
126
397
822

3,181
0

15,000
297

U

0
6,982

0
6,556

(423)
199
126
397
6ZZ

3,1 81
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

44,793 46,309 (1,516) M,793 46,309 (1,s16)0 0

0Net lncome(Loss) From Operations

Other Expenses

Net lncome (Loss)

(36,972)

(36,972)

(38,488) 1,515 (36,972) (38,488) 1,5160

(38,488) 1,516 .0 (36,972) ___-__lxq4!g 1,516 0

1



Current Assets
Cash
Account Receivable
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity
CY Funds Received From Authority
Current Year Equity
Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

Dayton Convention Center
Balance Sheet

For the Four Months Ending April 30,2021

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

100,000
7,821

'107,821

107,821

33,138
1 1,65s
44,793

100,000
(36,e72)

63,028
10]7,821

2



Dayton Convention Center
Balance Sheet Detail

For the Four Months Ending April30, 2021

ASSETS

Gash and lnvestments
Cash -'Operating
Petty Cash - Finance
Change Fund - Food & Beverage
Total Cash and lnvestments

Accounts Receivable
A/R
Total Accounts Receivable

$95,000

4,500
500

100,000

7.821
8217

Total Assets $107,821

3



Dayton Cbnvention Center
Balance Sheet Detail

For the Four Months Ending April 30,2021

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
fuP Control
tuP-Other
Total Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses
Accrued Payroll
Total Accrued Expenses

27,751
5,387

33,1 38

11,655

11,655

100,000
(36,972)

Equity
CY Funds Received From Authority
Current Year Equity
Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equiiy

63,028

$107.821

4



Dayton Convention Center
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Four Months Ending April30, 2021

April

(36,e72)

0

100,000
0

100,000
100,000

0

100.000

Year to Date

Cash Flow from Operations

Excess of Operating Expense Before Operating Funding
Adjustments to Reconcile Excess of Operating expenses
Before Operating Funding To Net Cash Provided By
(Used ln) Operating Activities

Provision For Bad Debt

Changes in Operating Assets And Liabulities
Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Other Assets
Account Payable & Accrued Expenses
Deferred lncome
Advance Deposits & Ticket Sales

Net Cash (Used ln) Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Funding From The Authority
Equipment & lmprovement Purchases to Be Funded By
The Authority

Net Cash (Used ln) Provided by Financing Activities
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Period
Cash & Cash Equivalents - End of Period

(36,e72)

0 n

(7,821)
0

(7,821)
0

793
0
o

0
44,793

0
0

44

6,9723 36,972

100,000

100,000
100,000

0

100,000

5



Dayton Convention Center
Other Operating Income Summary

For the Four Months Ending April 30,2021

Current Month
'Actual

Current Month
' Budqet Variance

Current Month
Prior Year

Year to Date
Actual

Year to Date
Budset Variance

Year to Date
PriorYear

Other Operating lncome
Retail Shop
Total Other Orierating Income

$7,,821
7,821

$7,8?1
7,821

$7'821
7.821

s7.821
7t821

6



I)ayton Convention Center
Indirect Expenses Detail

For the Four l\llonths Ending April 30, 2021
Executive

Current Month
Actual

Cunent Month
Budqet Variance

Current Month
Prior Year

Year to Date
Actual

Year to Date
Budqet Variance

Year to Date
Prior Year

SALARIES AND WAGES
Salaries Administration
Total Salaries and Wages

$8,1 73 $10,417 $8, I 73 $10,417 ($2,244)($2,244)
(2,244\I /J 10 417 8,1 73 10,417 (2,244)

PAYROLL TAXES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Benefits
401 (k)
Workers Compensation lnsur.
Vacation Expense

Total Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits

NET SALARIES AND BENEFITS

Total Department Expenses

1,042
1,050

144
313
200

(22s)
(1,050)

(1 04)
(313)
(200)

1,042
1,050

104
313
200

817 817 (225)
(1,050)

(1 04)
(313)
(200)

817 2,709 (1,Be2)

8,990 '|.3,126 (4,136)

8,990 13,126 (4,136)

817 709 (1,8e2)2

8,990 13,126 (4,136)

8,990 13,126 (4,136)

7



Dayton Convention Center .

Indirect Expenses Detail
For the Four Months Ending April 30' 2021

Operations

Current Month
Actual

$2,872
11,705
14,577

Current Month
Budget Variance

Current Month
Prior Year

Year to Date
Actual

$2,872

Year to Date
Budqet Variance

Year to Date
Prior Year

$3,000
12,000

($128)
(2e5)

$3,000
12,000

($1 28)
11 705 1295)

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Contracted Security
Contracted Cleaning
Total Contracled Services

OPERATIONS EXPENSES
Trash Removal
Exterminating
Total Operations Expenses

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Machinery & Equipmenl
Maintenance Agreements
Total Repairs and Maintenance

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES .

General Building Supplies
Janitorial
Total Operational Supplies

Total Department Expenses

15,000 (423) 14,577 15,000 (423)

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Computer Expense 496

Total General and Administrative Expenses 496
297 199 496 297 199
to7 199 297496 199

27
99

27
oo

27
oo

27
99

tlD

aaa

982
7,804

2,660
521

tzo 126 126

822 822
982o

822
6,982 982b

6,982 822 7 6,982 822

2,660
521

2,660
521

3.181

2,660
521

3,181 181a totJ

26,1 85 22,279 3,906 26,1 85 22,279 3,906

d



Dayton Convention Center
Indirect Expenses Detail

For the Four Months Ending April 30, 2021

Overhead

Current Month
Actual

Cunent Month
Budqet Variance

Current Month
Prior Year

Year to Date
Actual

Year to Date
Budqet Variance

Year to Date
Prior Year

UTILITIES
Electricity
Net Utilities

$6,556 $6,556 $6,556 $6,5s6$0 $0
6,556 6 556 6,556 5560 6 0

Total Department Expenses 6,556 6,556 6,556 6,556 0

9



Dayton Convention Center
Indirect Expenses Detail

For the Four Months Ending April 30, 2021
Food & Beverage

Current Month
Actual

Current Month
Budqet Variance

Current Month
Prior Year

Year to Date
Actual

Year to Date
Budqet Variance

Year to Date
Prior Year

SALARIES AND WAGES
Sa laries Administration
Total Salaries and Wages

$2,423 $3,750 ($1,327) $2,423 $3,750 ($1,327)

2,423

242

3,750 (1,327) 2,423 3,750 (1,327\

PAYROLL TAXES ANO EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
401 (k)
Workers Compensation lnsur.
Vacalion Expense
Total Payroll Taxes and Employee Beneflts

NET SALARIES AND BENEFITS

OPERATIONS EXPENSES
Uniforms - F&B

Total Operations Expenses

242 598 (356)

2,665 4,348 (1,683)

375
3B

113
72

(1 33)
(38)

(113)

aaa

JO

113
72

(1 33)
(38)

(113)
(72)

242

242 5S8 (356)

2,665 4,348 (1,683)

397 397 397 397

397 397 397 397

Total Department Expenses 3,062 4,348 (1,286) 3,062 4,348 (1,286)

10



Dayton Convention Center
Indirect Expenses Detail

For the Four Months Ending April 30,2021
Total Company Indirect Expenses

Current Month
Actual

Cunent Month
Budqet Variance

Current Month
Prior Year

Year to Date
Actual

Year to Date
Budqet Variance

Year to Date
Prior Year

SALARIES AND WAGES
Salaries Administration
Total Salaries and Wages

PAYROLL TAXES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes
Beneflts
401 (k)
Workers Compensation lnsur.
Vacation Expense
Total Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits

$10,596 $14,167
10,596 14,167

($3,57 1 )
(3,571)

$10,596 $1 4,1 67 ($3,571)
10,596 14,167 (3,571)

1,060 1,417
1,050

142
426
272

(357)
(1,050)

(142)
(426)
(272)

1,060 1,417
1,050

142
426
272

(357)
(1,0s0)

(142)
(426)
(272\

1,060 3,307 (2,247) 1,060 3,307 (2,247\

NET SALARIES AND BENEFITS

CONTMCTED SERVICES
Contracted Security
Contracted Cleaning
Total Conlracted Services

GENERAL AND ADMINISTR,ATIVE EXPENSES
Computer Expense
Total General and Administrative Expenses

11,655 17,474 (5,819) 11,655 17,474 (s,81e)

2,872
11 705

14,577

3,000
12,000

(1 28)
(295)

3,000
12,000

(128)
(295)

,8722
705

15,000 (423) 15,000 (423\14,577

496496 297 297 roo199

496 297 199 496 297 roo

OPERATIONS EXPENSES
Trash Removal
Exterminating
Uniforms - F&B
Total Operations Expenses

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Machinery & Equipment
Maintenance Agreements
Total Repairs and Maintenance

27
oo

397

27
99

397

27
99

397

27
99

397
523

822822

523 523 s23

822 822
6,982 6,982 6,982 6,982
7,804 6,982 822 7,804 6,982 822

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES
General Building Supplies
Janitorial
Total Operational Supplies

2,660
521

2,660
521

2,660
521

2,660
521

3,1 81 3,181 3,1 81 181e

UTILITIES
Electricity
Net Utilities

6,556 6,556 6,556 6,5560 0

6,556 6,556 6,556 6,5560 0

Total Department Expenses 44,793 46,309 t1$16) 44,793 46,309 (1 ,516)



Current Receivable

Conventions & Visitors Bureau

Dayton Regional Manufacturing Association

Total Current Receivables

DAYTON CONVENTION CENTER

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

BALANCE AS OF APRIL 30,2O2I

6,504.75

1.,316.25

$ 7,821.00

T2



DAYTON CONVENTION CENTER
. 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

BALANCE AS OF APRIL 30,2O2L

r Name Balance Due

A-]" ABLE

Air Force One

Aryes Staffing
Dayton Power and Light Company

Happy Chef

Harborlink Network LTD

Miami lndustrial Trucks

Moonlight Security

Professional Clea ning Services

Robinson's Janitorial & Floor Care Services

Roby Supply

Rumpke

MCCFA (for Moonlight Security & Prof Cleaning Ser:vices)

TOTAL

99.00

6,992.00

728.00
6,556.28

396.68

496.00
3,48r.77
1,444.84

4,300.50

2,717.00

52r.4r
27.48

s,386.97

s 33,137.93

13



 

 

EXHIBIT B 



IIAYTON IIINVENTI[N EENTER

OPERATING BUDGET

FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 3 T,2O2L

Distribution:

MCCFA:

Pam Plageman

Sean Fraunfelter

ASM Global:

John Page

Craig Liston



DAYTON CONVENTION CENTER
BUDGET INDEX

Lead Income Statement............

Lead Income Monthly Statement.

Direct Event Detail... ..

Other Income,

Indirect Expenses:

Executive Department.

Finance Department...

Event Management... ,,

Operations Department

Overhead...

Food & Beverage Depaftment...

Total Indirect Departments

Food & Beverage Income Statement... ,.,.

,l

)

.J

..5



Dayton Convention Center
April l, 2021 to December 31, 2021

Lead lncome Statement

Event Incorne

Direct Event Income
Rental Income

Service Income'

Service Expenses

Total Dirdct Event Income

Ancillary Income - Food & Beverage

GrossF&BConcessions
GrossF&BCatering
F & B Cost ofGoods Concessions

F & B Cost ofcoods Cateiing
Net Food & Beverage Income

Other Ancillary Income
Electrical
Audio Visual
Internet Services

Equipment Rental
Other Ancillary
Total Other Ancillary Income

Total Eveni lncome

Other Operating Incorne

Sponsorhip Income

Other Income

Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses

Employee Salaries and Wages

Taxes & Benefits
Net Enployee Wages and Benefits

Contracted Services

General and Administrative
Operations
Food & Beverage Expense

Repair & Maintenance
Suppl ies

Insurance
utilities' 
SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income (Loss) From Operations

Other Income (Expenses)

Net Income After Other Income (Expenses)

Total

133,965

27.730
(27,080)

134,615

50,650
474,200
(2t,273)

(r99,164)
304,4 I 3

20,000
51,200
4,950

15,055

9t,205

530,233

333

s 62,492
62,825

593,058

438,037
13s,4s8
573,495
104,700

48,640
6,500

68,s82
t06,444
44,000
29,120

233,800
80.000

1,295,281

(702.223)

(702.223\

1

Oayton Convention Center 2021 Budget Lead lncome ADJ 6/1/202 1. 10:59 AM



Dayton Convention Center

April 1, 2021 to December 3 l, 202 I

Lead Income StatemeDt - Monthly

Jue December

2 3 4 6 7 l0 1l

25,940
6,218

7,900
? l?<

tq Krs

4,600
I 1,500

1,500
I 6,960

4,',?00

16,040

3,912
10,000

1,000
r 6,000

3,6'75
133,965

27,'t30

Event lncome

Direct Event Income

Rental lncome
Service Income

Sewice Expenses

Total Direct Evenl lncome

Ancillary Income - Food & Beverage

GrossF&BConcessions
GrossF&BCatering
F&B Cost ofGoods - Concessions

F&B Cost ofGoods - Catering

Net Food & Beverage lncome

7 l5

6,650

(2,793)

6,500

(2,730)

17,500

57,200

(7,3s0)

5,000

64,250
(2,r00)

5,000

20,000

(2,100)

10,000

80,000
(4,200)

50,6i0
474,240

(21,273)

95,000 t5'1.?50

Other Aricillary Income

Electrical Seruices

Audio Visual

Intemet Seryices

Equipment Rental

Other Ancillary
Total Other.Ancillary Incone

- 3,857 3.770 43,326

1,000

3,035

4,035

150'

2,000

425

? s?<

4,150

12,500

1,3s0

2,000

20,000

40,165

10,950

55,100 91,495 14,500

l0-950

52,200

2;700
4,500

?,320

I 520

304,413

3,500
6,000

450

1,000

2,500

10,000

1,350

3,500

3,000

6,000

450

1,500

20,000

51,200

4,950

I 5,055

4,000
9,200
I,350
I )1<

I 7.350 I 5.825 I )0s

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income 7,821 7.863 7.863 6.546

l5

6-546 6 546 6 546 6 546 6 546 6? R?{

Adjusted Cross lncome

Operating Expenses

Employee Salaies ad Wages

Benefits
Less: Event Labor A.llocations

Net Employee Wages md Benefits

Contracted Services

General md Administrative

Operations

Food & Beverage Expense

Repair & Maintenmce
Supplies

lnsumce
utiliries
Other
SMG Muagement Fees

Less: Expenses Allocated
Total Operating Expenses

108

14,t67
3,307

t7,47!
15,000

297

45,833

t4,648

60,48 r

I I,125
? 5q?

813

t,266
t2,433
5,s00

50,4t6
t6,427

66,843

11,225

3,293
813

t,260
t2,433
5,500

4,160

28A06

50,416

t6,427
50,416

t6,427

66,843

11,225

7,393
813

7,569
t2,433
5,500
4,160

28A06

50,4 l6
16,427

66,843
tr,225
8,393

813

14,006

t2,433
5,500

4,160
28,406

50,4 l6
16,427

66,843
tt,22s
6193

8t3
25,494
t2,433
s,500
4,t60

28,406

50,4 l6
t6,427

66,843
tt,225
7,393

8r3
3,000

12,433

5,500

4,1 60

28,406

75,541

18,939

438,037

135,458

6,982

6,556 28,406

66,843

t1,225
6,493

813

8,931

12,433

5,500
4,160

28,406

94,480
tt,225
6,293

813

7,056
lz,43t
5,500

4,t60
28,406

573,49s

104,700

48,640

6,500

68,582

106,444

44,000

29,t20
233,800

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 80,000

1,295,28t46,309 t32,6t6 t43,932 154,803 r54,34t t6t,7.78 17t,366 149,772 180,363

N€t lncome (Loss) From Operations 07

2

Dafon Convention Center 2021 Budget Lead ln@me Stalement Monlhly 6hl2o21 11:AO AM



Dalton Conmtion Cotcr
April l, 2021 b D@ber 31, 2021

DIRECT EVENT DETAIL

F&BEvflt
Date

Ev6t
Nme ID

Evd

NMb€r

Afmdd@ Evmts Everd

Da]€ R@al

Rffiu€

Toal
Birabb
Scruic

Toal
Swie
Exlmsc

Did
Event

F&B

Cering
Elffiical
Swic

Audio

Vieal
Intemd

Setrie
Equipmmrll Othcr

;:* ll T:3
Total

Ancillary

In@me

Total

Evmt

lr6me

Tcdal

Tel Msch

Tobl

Sporting Evffi - 45

Belond the Sm
Ohio Ditrid AAU Championship

VIP Da@ Competiti@

4,200

8,650

7,490

(1,5s0)

(1.750)

(r,743)

4,200

8,650

7.490

377

t,740

t,740

300

1,310

t,200

225

4,817

I 1,700

10,930

|347
n422
I 1448

600

700

900

400

1,550

1,750

1,743

677

3,050

3,440

725

500

500

Tota]

Tum It Dd€
E@b - 45

Sportirg Elm - 45

NPC hlie Palmer UItiMe Shwdoffi
Vicki Jo Dee SEdio R@ital

Mi@i Valley Dd@ Cder
H*drek MMA

I t440 500

500

500

475

700

300

500

650

300

500

2,250

1,900

1,000

(47s)

(700)

(300)

2,250

1,900

1,000

I,740

1.160

2,4t5

1,660

500

4.665

3,560

1,500

175

150 500

Total Evmb - 45

Tel

Consm / Public Shm - 15

GffiCitycomicc@ 0 s00 I 3 9,625 1,950 (1,950) 9,625 4,350 - 650 500 - 5,500 t5,125

CoNdim - 25

WrightDial%sewithlndusry 300 I 4 - 650 (650) - - 21,5?6 500 6,000 450 - - 28,526 23,526

l-----ro6-----iol *.;- :oo t q - oso (eso) - - zr,s;o soo e,ooo qso --:-------:----G- 
zr,szo

M€tings - 40

Misc 500 2 4 10,000 1,000 (1,000) 10,000 - 1 1,600 I,000 4,000 900 1,000 - 18,500 28,500

I rora Veing. - qO SOO Z q ro.ooO t.000 tl.o
Sponiog Ewnts - 45

Misc 1,600 2 4 10,000 1,000 (1,000) IO,OOO 5,800 - 2,000 2,000 - I,OOO - IO,8O0 20,800

I tout Sponing eum - qS t.eOO .Z + IO,OOO I.OOO (I.OOO) IO.OOO

Total

BarCugts - l0
Jilei Weiitding Racr"tid 250 I,500 1.500 2.465 2,465

Misc 300 t 2 - 50O (500) 29,000 500 2,000 - 3t,500 31,500

M@tings - 40

Misc 500 | 2 5,000 5!q (l0g) 5,q00 - 5,t00 1,000 2,000 450. 500 - 9,750 t4,750

Sponing E@s - 45

Mis 1,000 | 2 5,000 500 (500) 5,000 2,900 - 2,000. 2,000 - 500 7,400 12,400

@ r,oob ' r .i iooo soo iioo
Toal

Cwertim - 25

Metings - 40

Dayton Convenlion Cenler 2021 Audget

500 700

Dired Event Debil

500 450

611nO21,10:15 l{,li

AV Tdh/TETS

Toul Conv*im - 25

700500

3



Dalbn Conventid Cffi
April l, 2021 to D@ber 31,2021

DET

Evd
Date

Evdt
Nme

Evd
ID

Afiddae Ev* Event

Dals

Inffie

F&B

Cenrg
Inome

Eldic€l
Swi6

Audio

Visua.l

In&md

Servie
Equipmemll Other

n*u ll e'"itt".v
Ir*" ll u**"

Toal
Ancillary

lnome

Tobl
Rmral

Rwenue

Toal
BiUable

Seryic

Tobl
Seryie

Exomc

Did
Evmt

In6me

F&B Tobl
Ev6t

Inome

90040

4

Toul

Toel

BarquE& - l0
Bl&k Tie Alwi W@k6d Gala For.nal

PGidmfs Club

Cmhl Shlc Uniw6ity 2021 Home@ming

NAACP Freedom Fud Bdquet

Misc

(9t2\
(300)

(1,200)

5,220

5,075

I r,600

23,200

300

500

500

1,000

I

2

2

I

1,200 9t2
300

t,200

1,200

5,850

12,100

24,900

6,420

5,850

rl2,too
24,900

275500

500

l,?00

Tobl

Coffiiru-25
l0 700 275

ToEl Convffioa - 25

Mdings - 40

500 450

4

4

O*s - 60

Aleha Almi Mixer

Tobl Otts - 60

Tohl Oaober

Baqucts - l0
#t07

Toal l0
M€tings - 40

Misc s00 | 2 5,000 500 (500) 5,000 - 5,800 1,000 2,0!q {50 500 - 9,750 14,750

Sporting Em - 45

500

Total Ndmbd

Bdqu* - J0

Misc 2,000 2 4 - 1,000 (1,000) - - 46,400 1,485 3,500 - 500 51,885 51,885

Srrbrtiry Ev6ts - 45

350

350

ljltimbch@rExperim@ 300 -l 2 6,000 1,675 (1,025) 5,650 2,900 - 500 500 - 520 - 4,420 il,0?O
Regional Bid Evflr/Dep South 300 t 2 10,000 1,000 (I,OOO) - lO,O00 2,900 - 715 500 - 1,300 - 5,415 15,415

600 2 4 16,000 2,6?5 (2,025) 16,650 5,SOO - 1,215 r,000 - 1,820 - 9,835 26,4a5

Tobl D@nU 2,600 4 8 16,000 3,6?5 (3,025) 16,650 5,800 46,400 2,700 4,500 - 2,320 - 61,720 ?8,370

Td.t s - ,r,r50 3? ?3 t33

4

Dayton Convenlion Center 2021 Budget Dkect Event Detail 6/1/2021. t0:,l5AM



Dayton Convention Center

April l,202t to December 31,2021
OTHER INCOME

300

Account Title Itemized Arnounts / Descriptions Budget

Spousorship Pepsi.conversion fees $500 a year for 5 yrs starting 5/l/21 $ 333 $ 333

Tennant Rental CVB $6,504.75 a month

DMRA $1,3 16.25 a month (April, May, June only)
$ 58,543

3,949

$ 62,492

300 April I, 2021 to December 31, 2021 $ 62,825

5

Other lncome SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 512412021,2:21 PM



Daldon Convention Centet
April I, 2021 to D@mbet 31, 2021

OTHER INCOME
300-00

61 606

50505

Acct# Accounr Title

62 492
3i3

Budqet

s

January

$

Februan

$

Mach

s ?821

7 821

Apnl

s 7 85'l

1 421

May

s 7 8.51

'7 821

June

s 6546

6 505

42
July

$ 6 546

6 505

42
Auqus

$ 6.546

6 SOS

Seotember

$ 6.s46

6.50s
42

October

s 5545

6 505

42

November

S 654r

6 505

42

De€mber

s 62875

62 492
333

T01a.i

6'

Dayton Conventjon Ceder 2021 Budgel Other lncome Monthly 5E4P@1.2123 PV



Dayton Convention Center
April l, 2021 to December 31,2021
EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

80 l -00

Acct# Account Title Itemized Arnounts / Descriptions Budget

70005 Salaries Administration $ 93,753 $ 93,753

70710 Bonus - General $ 18,750 $ 18,750

7 1005 Payroll Taxes $ I 1,253 $ 11,253

7l105 Benefits $ 9,450 $ 9,4s0

7 t205 4ol (k) $ 938 $ 938

7 1505 Workers Compensation Insur $ .2,813 $ 2,8 13

7 170s Vacation Expense $ 1,803 $ 1,803

73010 Professional Fees - Legal $ 3,000 $ 3,000

73055 Meals & Entertainment $ 1,000 $ 1,000

73060 Meetings & Conventions $ 2,000 $ 2,000

73065 Dues & Subscriptions $ 500 $ 500

80 I -00 April 1,2021 to December 31,2021 $ 145,260

7

Executive SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 61112021,10:48 AM



Dayon Convention Center
April l, 20?l to December 3 1, 2021

EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT
80t -00

Total s 145 260

Drres & Srrh<crintions

Meerino( & adnwmri6n<
Meals & Enledainmenl

Professional Fees - Leoal

Vacatinn Frnen<e

Workers Comoensarion Insur
401 (k)
Benefirs

PawrollTdes
Bonus - Geneml

Salaies Adminisrrarion
Account Title

500

? ooo
! 000
3.000
t.803

2 8r3
938

9.450
) t.253
r8 ?50

s 93 753

Budset

s

Jauary

$

February

$

Mach

$ 13.126

)oo
313

104

t.050

\ 04)

$ 10.41?

Anril

$ 13 125

?oo

3r3
104

1.050

s t0 417

Mav

s )3 625

500

zo0

3t3
I04

r 050
1.O42

s 't04t7
June

s r3 8?6

167

500
200
313

t04
I 050
1 042

s 10417
Julv

$ 13 8?6

83

161

500

200
3t3
104

I 050

I O42

s r04t?
Auqust

s 14 876

r.000

1 6'l
500

200
313

l04
r 050
1 042

s 10417
Seotembq

$ 13.876

83

167

500

200

313

t04
I 050

1 042

s lo4t7
Octobet

$ 14.876

83

! 000
t6'7

500

200

3t3
r04

t.050
I 04)

$ t0.417

November

s 14 001

l3

l6'l

200

3ri
104

I 050
2-917

l8 750

s 10 417

December

s 145 760

500

2.000

I 000

3 000

I 803

2.813

qiR
9 450

| 253

18 ?50
s 93 753

Tolal

8

Daylon Conveilion center2ml Budget Erecdive Monthly 6/12021, 10:48 AM



Dayton Convention Center

April 1,2Q21 to December 31,2021
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

802-00

Acct# Account Title Itemized Amour"rts / Descriptions Budget

70005 Salaries Administration $ 46,664 $ 46,664

71005 Payroll Taxes $ 4,664 $ 4,664

71 105 Benefits $ 8,400 $ 8,400

7 t205 401 (k) $ 467 $ 467

71505 Workels Cornpensation Insur $ I,400 $ 1,400

7 r705 Vacation Expense $ 897 $ 891

73T20 Payroll Processing $ 6,000 $ 6,000

73275 Computer Expense $ 6,000 $ 6,000

802-00 April l, 202l to December 3l, 2021 $ 74,492

9

Finance SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 61112021,10:49 AM



Daylon Convention Center
Aptil 1,2O21 ro Doember 3 l, 2021

FINANCE DEPARTMENT
' 802-00

Comouter Exoense

Pawoll Processinq

Vacation Fxnen<e

Workers Comoensaion Insur
401 (k)

Pawoll Taes
Sal:tip< Ariminictretinn

Account Titte

6 000

6.000

89?

I 400
461

R 400

q 46 664
Budsel

s

Jaury

s

February

s

Mach

s

Aoril

$ 7.812

1t2
l?5
58

1.050

583

$ 5.833

Mav

s 7.812

tt2
r 75

58

I 050
583

$ 5.833

June

s 9.812

1 000
I 000

11'
175

58

I 050

583

s 5833

hlv

s 9812

r.000

I 000

tt2
t'15

58

I 050

583

s 5833

$ 9812

1.000

I 000

112
175

5R

I O50

583

s 583?
September

s s 8l?

I 000
l-000

1t)
t75
58

I OSO

583

s 5 83?

Octobq

$ 9.812

I 000
I 000

1t2
1't s

58

l-050
583

s 5.833

November

.$ 9 8r2

1.000

I 000
ll2
t75

SR

I O50

5R3

s 58i3
December

s J4 49)

6.000
6.000

89?

I 400

46't

R 400
4.664

s a6 664
Total

10

&yton Convenlbn Center2o2l Budgd d12D1, 10:49 AM



Dayton Corrventiou Center

April 1,2021 to December 31,2021

'ALES 
DEPAI{TMENT 

803-oo

Acct# Account Title Itemized Amounts / Descriptions Budget

70005 Salaries Administration $ 32,081 $ 32,081

71005 Payroll Taxes $ 3,206 $ 3,206

7t 105 Benefits $ 7,3s0 $ 7,350

7 t205 401 (k) $ 321 $ 321

71505 Workers Compensation Insur $ 962 $ 962

7 1705 Vacation Expense $ 617 $ 617

73055 Meals & Entertainment $ 1,000 $ 1,000

73060 Meetings & Conventions $ 1,000 $ 1,000

73065 Dues & Subscliptions $ 500 $ 500

73130 Advertising $ 3,000 $ 3,000

73210 Plinting Marketing $ 1,000 $ 1,000

73215 Prornotional Supplies $ 3,000 $ 3,000

803-00 April 1,2021to December 31,2021 $ 54,037

E

11

Sales SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 61112021,10:50 AM



Dayon Convention Center

Apil l,2O2l to Decembet 3 l, 2021

SALES DEPARTMENT
803-00

Total s 5,1.037

Promotional Supplies

Prinrins Maketine
Advedis;nq

Dues & Subscriptions

Meetinss & Conventions
Meals & Enteroinment

Vacation ExpeDse

Workers Compensation Insur.

40r rk\

PawollTaes
Salries Administmtion

A@unt Title

3 000

r.000

1 000

500

I 000

1.000

611

967
321

7 350
1 206

s 32 081

Budcet

s

Jaury

$

Februry

s

Msch

S

ADril

$

Mav

s 6352

88

t3'7

46
r 050

45R

4 sRi
June

s 7 612

1.000

83

88

137

46

I O50

458

s 4 5R?

Julv

$ 8.612

I 000
1.000

83

161

88

137

46
l-050

458
$ 4.583

Ausust

$ 8.6t2

I 000

83

I 000
t6't
Ri

t3?
46

I 050
458

s 4583
Septmber

s 7.612

1.000

t6'1

t*
t1'l
46

l 050
458

s 4583
October

s 7612

1.000

R1

167

88

\3'1

46

l 050
458

s 4583
November

s 7 612.

r 000

83

167

88

t37
46

I 0s0
45R

s 4 5R?

December

$ s4.037

3.000

1.000

3 000

500

1.000

I 000

6\'7
962
321

7.350

3.206

$ 32.03 l

Tota.l

72

Da!4on Convention Cente! 2021 Budgel Sal6 Monlhly 6/112021,1o:5oAM



Dayton Convention Center

April 1,2021to Decernber 31,2021
EVENT MANAG EMENT DEPARTMENT

824-00

Account Title Iternized Arnounts / Descriptions Budget

Salaries Adrninistration $ 80,000 $ 80,000

Payroll Taxes $ 8,000 $ 8,000

Benefits $ 16,800 $ 16,800

40r (k) $ 800 $ 800

Workers Cornpensation Insur $ 2,400 $ 2,400

Vacation Expense $ 1,538 $ 1,53 8

824-00 April 1 ,202I to December 31,2021 $ 109,538

13

Event Management SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 512412021 ,2:25 PM



DaYon Convention Center

April l,2021 to D@enber 3 l, 2021

EVENT MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
824-OO

Total s 109 538

Vacation Enense
Workers Comoensation lnsur

401 ft)
Benefits

Pawoll Taes
Salaies Administration

A@ouil Tide

I 53R

7 400
800

r 6.800
8-000

$ 80.000

Budqel

$

Jmun

$

Februo

S

Mach

$

Aoril

s t3 692

t92
100
100

2 100

l-000
$ t0.000

Mav

$ 13.692

t92
300

100

2 100

I 000
$ 10 000

June

$ t3.692

192
300
100

? loo
I OOO

s l0 000
Julv

$ 13-692

ls2
300
100

2-100
1.000

s 10000
Auqust

s t3 692

lq?
ioo
100

2-100

1.000

s 10 000
September

s t3 692

t92
300

r00
2 100

1.000

$ t0.000

Octobet

s ti 6s2

t92
300

lo0
2 )00
1 000

s t0 000

November

$ 13.692

ls?
300
100

2.1 00

1.000

s l0 000

December

s 109 538

1.538

2-400

800

15800
8 000

$ 80.000

Tobl

I4

Dayton Convention Cenler 2021 Budget Evcnt Managemenl Monthly 5n4DA21 , 2:26 PU



Dayton Conventiotr Center

April 1,2021 to December 31,2021
OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT

805-00

Acct# Account Title lternized Arnounts / Descriptions Budget

70005 Salaries Adrninistration $ 96,664 $ 96,664

71005 PayrolI Taxes s 9,664 $ 9,664

71 105 Benefits $ 16,800 $ 16,800

7 1205 401 (k) $ 967 $ 967

71505 Workers Compensation Insur $ 2,900 $ 2,900

71705 Vacation Expense $ 1,859 $ 1,859

7200s Contracted Security $ 72,000 $ 72,000

72105 Contracted Cleaning $ 32,000 $ 32,000

73275 Computer Expense Dude Solutions $800, Harbor link $297lrnon
Misc. Venue Ops $1.333.33

$ 3,473

12,667
$ 16,140

74010 Trash Removal $ 5,200 $ 5,200

74045 Exterminating Service $ 800 $ 800

74075 Medical First Aid $ 500 $ s00

75 100 Machinery & Equipment R&M $ 20,000 $ 20,000

75105 Maintenance Agreements HVAS (Air Force l)
Elevator/Escalator (Oracle)

Fire & Alarm monitoring (Shiver Security)

$

$

62,838

22,500

1,106

$ 86,444

76005 General Building Supplies $ 10,000 $ 10,000

7606s Plumbing $ 1,000 $ 1,000

76080 First Aid $ 500 $ 500

76115 Janitoria[ Supplies $ 28,500 $ 28,500

1 6r40 Unifonns $ 4,000 $ 4,000

805-00 April 1, 2021 to December 31,2021 $ 405,93 8

l_5

Operations SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 61112021,10:51 AM



DaFon Convention Center

April I, 2021 to Decembs 3 1, 2021

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT
805-00

Total

tlnifoms
Jaitoriai SuDDlies

First Aid
Plumbing

General Buildins Suoolies

Maintenoce Agreements

Marhinaru & Eorinment R&M
Medical First Aid

Eneminating Sewioe

Trash Removal

Comouter Exoense

Contracted Cleainq
Contracted Secrriru
Vacation Exoense

Workers Comoensation Insur

401 (k)
Benefils

Pawoll Taes
Salaies Administration

Ac@unt Titte

4 000
28 500

500

I 000

r0000
86.444

20 000
500

ROO

5 200

16.140

3? OOO

1) OOO

I 859

2.900
961

16.800

9-664
$ 96-654

Budoet

s

JhuN

s

Februm

$

Mach

s )) )19

6.982

297

12000
3 000

ADril

$ 4?.958

500

3 563

63

1)S

I 250

9.933

2 500

63

too
650

r.980
2.500

I 625

232

363
t21

? roo
l-208

q l? oR?

Mry

$ 47-958

500

3 563

63

'I 250

9.933

2.500

53

100

650

I 980

2-500
8.625

21?

363
t2l

2-1 00
1.208

s 12-083

June

s 47 958

500

'l 56',1

63

125

9 933

2.500

6i
100

650

1 980
2 500

8.625
232

121

2 t00
I 208

$ '12 083

July

$ 47 958

500

3.563

61

125

1.250

g 933

2.500
63

t00
650

1.980

2 500

I 625

232

'163
I2l

2 too
I 208

s 12 083

Augus

s 47 958

500

3.563

53

125

1.250

I gjj
2 500

63

r00
650

1.980

2 500
I 625

232

l2l
2 100

I 208

s 12083
September

g 47 954

500
3.563

125

1.250

9.933

2 500
63

100

650
1.980

2 500

8 625

232
363

1)1

2loo
I 20R

s 12 o8'l
October

s 4? 95R

500

3 553

63

1)S

I 250

9.933

2 500

63

100

650

1.980

2.500

I 625

232
363

t7l
2.100
1.208

$ 1' Ol?
November

$ 47.956

500

3 563

53

125

1 ?50
9 931

2.500

5i
t00
650

I 980

2 500
8.625

t1)
353

12

2 100

I 208
$ 12.083

December

s 405 938

4 000

28.500

500

I O00

I 0.000

86.444

20 000
500

ROO

5 200

I6.t40
i? oo0

72 000
I 859

2.900
961

l5 ROO

I 664

s 96 564

Totai

16

Dalton Convemion Cenler 2021 Eudgel OFralions Monihly 5hP421.11.01 AM



Daytorl Conventioli Ceuter

April 1,2021 to Decetnber 31,2021
OVEI{IIEAD DEPARTMENT

8 I 0-00

Acct# Account Title Itemized Amounts / Descriptions Budget

72305 Contracted Armor Car Service $ 700 $ 700

73035 Bank Service Charges $ 2,000 $ 2,000

73100 Office Supplies $ 2,000 $ 2,000

73 105 Printing & Stationary $ 500 $ 500

77035 Ceneral I-iability lnsurance $ 29,120 $ 29,120

78005 Electricity $ 150,000 $ 1s0,000

78 105 Natural Gas $ 60,000 $ 60,000

78205 Telephone Usage $ 6,400 $ 6,400

78305 Water & Sewage $ 17,400 $ 17,400

80005 Base Fee $ 80,000 $ 80,000

8 l 0-00 April l, 2021 to December 31,2021 $ 348,120

17

Overhead SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 611t2021,10:52 AM



Dayton Convention Center
April l, 2021 to De@mber 31, 2021

OVERIIEAD DEPARTMENT
8 t0-00

Total $ 348. I 20

Base Fee

Water & Sewase

TeleDhone Usaqe

Netural C^s
El@triciN

General Liabilip Insurance

Printino,9 Srationaru

Bank Seruice Charoes

Contracted Amor Car Seruice

A@ount Title

80 000

t1 -400

6.400

60 000

150.000

29.120

500

2 000

2 000

700

Budqet

$

Jdud

s

Februn

s

Mach

$ 6.556

6 556

Aoril

s 39.01 8

r0000
2 t75

800

7 500

11 931

63

lao
100

Mav

$ . 43.4't8

r0 000

2 l'75
800

7 500

t7 931

4.150
63

?so
500

100

June

$ 43.178

10000
2 175

800

? 500

r7 931

4.1 60
63

)so
)on
100

July

s 43 078

lo 000
2 t75

800

7 500

t7 931

4 160

63

tso
loo
100

August

s 43 078

t0.000

? 1'15

800

7.500

l? 9tl
4 160

53

250
100

t00
SeDtembq

s 4i ]?R

r 0.000
2.t't5

800
7.500

17.93 I

4 160

53

250
200
100

Octobet

$ 43.078

I0000
2-1'15

800

7 500
17 931

4_t60

61

250
too
r00

Novembd

s 43 478

lo o00
2 t'|5

800

7 500

t7931
4.160

63

250
500
r00

December

s 348 r20

R0 000
17 400
6,400

60.000

150 000

29 t20
500

7 000
2.000

?00

Total

18

Dayton convenlion Cenler 2021 Budget Overhead Monthly 6/1/2021. 10:52 AM



Dayton Convention Center
April 1,2021to December 31,2021
FOOD & BEVERAGE DEPARTMENT

814

Account Title Itemized Arnounts / Descriptions Budget

Salaries Adrninistration $ 63,750 $ 63,750

Bonus - General $ 6,375 $ 6,375

Payroll Taxes $ 7,012 $ 7,012

Benefits $ 8,400 $ 8,400

401 (k) $ 638 $ 638

Workers Cornpensation lnsur. $ 1,913 $ 1,913

Vacation Expense s 1,226 $ 1,226

Other Operating Exp - F&B $ 47,588 $ 47,588

Incentive Fee - F&B $ 20,994 s 20,994

19

Food & Beverage SummaryDayton Convention Center 2021 Budget 61112021 , 10:52 AM



Dayton Convention Center
April l, 2021 to December 31, 2021

FOOD & BEVERAGE DEPARTMEN'I
814

Incentive Fee - F&B
Other Ooeratins Exo - F&B

Vacation Exoense

Workers Comnensation Insur-

401 rk)
Benefits

Patroll Taxes

Bonus - General

Salaries Administration

Account Title January February March

72

n3
38

375

s 3.750

April

lbt)
1.000

144

225

75

1.050

750

s 7.500
Mav

260

1.000

144

225

75

1.050

750

s 7.500

June

2.988

5.943
144

225

75

1 -050

750

s 7.500

Julv

2 770

4 799

144

22s

75

I 050
750

$ 7.s00

August

3.800

10.206

144
225

75

1.050

750

S 7 500
September

6.31 0

1 9.1 84

144

225

75

1.050

750

$ 7.s00

October

1.000

2.000

144

225

75

1.050

750

s 7.500

November

3.600

3.4s6
144

225

75

1.050

1,387

6.375
s 7.500

December

20.994

47.588

1,226

1.913

638

8,400

7.01l
6.375

s 63 750

Toral

20

Dayton Convention C€nter 2021 Budget Food & BeveGge Monthly 6/112021. 10:53 AM



Dayon Convention Centc
April 1,2021 to December 3 l, 2021

ALL INDIRECT DEPARTMENTS

Total

Bre Fee

Water & Suase
Teleohone Usaee

Naural Gc
Electricie

General Liabiliw Insuroce
I Inifoms

Jmitorial Suoolies

First Aid

Plumbinq
General Buildine Suoolies

Ma;n1entuce Aqeemenb
Machinerv & Eouipment R&M

Incentive Fee - F&R
Other Ooeratinq Exo - F&B

Medical First Aid
Eneminatins Service

Troh Removal

Comnuter Exoense

Promotional Suoolies

Printine Maketinq
Advenising

Pawoll Processina

Printine & Sutiond
Office Supplies

Dues & Subscriotions
Meetines & Conventions

Me2ls & Fnrefrainmenr

Bmk Seruice Chaees
Professional Fees - Legal

a^nfr..red Armor Car Seruice

Conraoed Cleoinp
Contracted Securiw

V:stion Exnense

Workers CohDensdion Insur
40r (k)
Benefits

Account Title

RO 000

11 400
6.400

60 000

I 50 000
29.r20

4 000
28.500

500

1.000

I 0.000

R6 !4A
20 000

20 994
47.588

500

800

5 200

22 140
3.000

I OOn

3 000

6 000

500

2 000

1.000

i 000

2 000

2.000

i 000

700

32-000

?? 000

't 940
t2 388

4.13t

6't 100
4i 7gq

25 t2S

Budqet

s

Jaury

s

Februn

s

Mach

s 45 309

6.556

6 SRt

297

l2 000
3.000

a'71

426
142

t.050

1 411

April

s t326t6

t0 000
2-t't5

800

? 500
t7 -931

500

3.563

63

t25
r.250

q q1f
2 500

266

1.000

63

100

650

I 980

63

)so

300

2 500

8.625

881

13'15
458

7.350

4 5R?

Mav

$ r43 932

l0 000
2.t15

R00

? 500

t'7.931

4 t60
500

3.563

61

t25
l-250
9.933

, 500

260
1.000

6',1

100

650

r 980

63

?50

500

500

100

2 500
8.625

969
I 512

504

8.400

5tuI

June

s 154 803

10 000
2 175

800

7 500
t'I -931

4 160

500

3-563

125

1.250
9-933

2.500

2 988
5 943

63

I00
650

2 gRo
I 000

I OO0

63

250

16'l

200
500

t00
? 500

a 625
969

I 5r?
504

8 400
5-041

Julv

s 154 34r

loooo
2 1'75

800

? 500

l7 931

4.160

500

3 553

63

125

I 250
9 933

2.500
2.710

4 799
63

too
650

2.980

I 000

I 000

1.000

25O

t67

333

100

500
t00

2.500

8 625

969
t-512

504

I 400
5 041

$

Auqust

s 16r ??R

lo o00
2 175

800

7 500

l7 931

4.160

500

3 563

63

1)S

I 250
9 933

2 500
3.800

r0206

r00
650

2.980

I OOO

1.000

63

250
167

2 000

100

500
t00

2 500
8.625

969
1 512

504

R 400
5 04r

Seplember

s l7l ?66

10.000

2 175

800

7 SOO

t7 931

4-160

500

3 563

63

I7S
1 250
9 933

2 SDO

6.310

lg 184

63

100

550

29AO

1 000
r 000

63

250

16'l

333

200
500

100

2 500

8.625

959
t 5t2

504

8.400

s 04l

October

$ t49.172

10.000

2 175

800

7.500

t79il
4.150

500

i 56i
63

t r<
r tso
9 gjj
2 500

l-000

, 000

5l
100

650

2 980

I OOO

I 000
63

?50

\61
1.000

100

500

r00

2 500

8.625

s6g
1 512

504

8-400

5Ml

November

$ 180.353

10.000

) t'ts
800

7.500

l7s3t
4 150

500

3 563.

63

125

1 ?50

2 500

3:600
3.456

6i
100

650

2 980

t.000

I OOO

5:]

250

333

500

100

2 500

I 625
969

I 5t?
504

8 400

7.553

t< lr<

December

s 1.295-281

80-000

17.400

6 400
60-000

150.000

29 120

4.000
28.500

500

t-000
l0_000

R6 444
?o ooo
20 994
47 588

500

800

5_200

12.140

I OOO

I 000
3-000

6.000

500

2 000
t.000

3 000

2-000

2.000

3 000
100

32.000

'12 aoo
1-940

1 2.388

4 t-ll
6't 200
43'799
25 125

Total

2I

Datton Convention Center2021 8ldgel Indied Depanment MonSIy d12021.11r02AM



Day.ton Convention Center
April l,2021 to December 31,2021
FOOD & BEVEMGE INCOME STATEMENT

Revenues

Gross Concessions
Gross Catering

Total Revenues

COGS, Evenl Labor & Supplies

Concessions
Caiering

Total COGS, Event Labor & Supplies

Net Sales

lndirect Expenses

Wages&Benefits-F&B
Other Operating - F&B
lncentive Fee - F&B

)

Total lndirect Expenses

Net lncome

Gross Margin
Profrt Margin

January February March April May June July August Sepiember October November December

6,650 6,500

Total
Budget

17,500 5,000 5,000 10,000 50,650
57,200 64,2-q0 95,000 '157,750 20,000 80,000 474,200

74,700 69,250 95,OOO 157/sO 25,000 9o,O0o 524,850

o/o of Sales

10%
90%

6,650 6,500 1004h

(2,793) (2,730) (7,350) (2,100) - (2,100) (4,200, (21,273)
(24,O24) (26,98s) (3e,e00) (66,255) (8,400) (33,600) (199,164)

(2,7e3) (2,730) (31,374) (29,085) (3e,900) (66,255) (10,s00) (37,800) (220,437')

-40k

-38%

42o/o

58o/o3,857 3,770 43,326 40,165 55,100 91,495 14,500 52,200 304,4.13

! $ $ 4,348 $ 9,744 $
- 1,000
- 266

9,744
1,000

260

58%
-111o/o

$ 9,744 $ 9,744 $ 9,744 $ 9,744 $ 9,744 $ 16,756 89,314
5,943 4,799 10,206 19,184 2,000 3,456 47,588
2,988 2,770 3,800 6,310 1,000 3,600 20,994

17o/o

9%
4o/o

4,348 11,010 11,004 18,675 17,313 23,750 35,238 12,744 23,812 157,896

(4,348) (7,153) (7,2U) 24,6s1 22,852 31,350 56,257 1,756 28,388 146,517

30%

28Yo

#Dtv/o!
#Drv/0!

#Dtv/0!
#Dlv/0t

#Dtv/0t
#Dtv/0!

#Dtv/0!
#Dtv/o!

58%
-108%

58o/o

JJ'/O

58Yo

JJ-/O

58Yo 58%
36%

58Vo 58Yo

32o/o

58%
28%7%33%

22



 

 

EXHIBIT C 



 

 

EXHIBIT D 















MCCFA Budget versus Actual - YTD 2021 through May*
Jan-May*

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues 2021 2021 2021

City of Dayton Hotel Tax Contribution (1) 231,456         (231,456)          
MCCFA Lodging Tax 3%  (2) 1,227,859     291,172         (936,687)          
Food and Beverage 337,808         (337,808)          
Audio Visual -                    
Events/Rental Income* 265,631         59,816           (205,815)          
DCC Leases 92,664           15,642           (77,022)            
Management Company Donation
Other 2                     

Total Revenues 2,155,418     366,632         (1,788,788)       

Expenses
Salary 140,000         59,231           80,769              
Retirement 33,600           14,216           19,384              
Medicare 2,030             853                1,177                
Other Benefits 1,700             929                771                   
Assistant to ED (9m in 2021) 37,503           12,937           24,566              
Office Related -                    

Laptop 3,500             2,386             1,114                
Supplies/COVID 2,000             5,936             (3,936)              
Dues 10,000           660                9,340                
Conferences and travel 10,000           716                9,284                
Furniture 9,974             (9,974)              
Website 5,000             1,250             3,750                
Technology Software 3,049             (3,049)              
Misc Convention Center items 5,007             (5,007)              

Professional Services -                    
Legal 90,000           84,956           5,044                
Accounting 10,000           7,025             2,975                
Audit -                 -                    
Mgmt Co (9m in 2021) 125,000         125,000           
Hotel Tax Collection Expenses 36,836           15,086           21,750              
Promotional Services/Advertising 20,000           1,250             18,750              
Payroll and Bank Fees 5,000             1,785             3,215                
Architectural Design 6,000             (6,000)              
Other - CBD Advisors 1,000             (1,000)              
Other- Energy Audit/Plants 1,961             (1,961)              
Other - AV Services 5,000             4,461             539                   
Other - Facility Cleaning 3,460             (3,460)              
Other - VM/Bev Selection assistance 7,609             (7,609)              

Insurance -                    
Directors and Officials 3,500             3,500                
General Liability 25,000           25,000              
Bonds 1,500             1,500                

Convention Center Operation* 780,000         130,619         649,381           
Special Assessments 65,000           65,000              

City of Dayton Debt -                    
  Energy Conservation QCB -                    

Principal 120,000         120,000           
Interest 30,627           30,627              

Contingency 50,000           50,000              

Total Expenses 1,612,796     382,356         1,230,440        

Net Change 542,622     (15,724)      (3,019,228)   

* The information for the convention center expenses doesn't include May payments or deposits from
the shared account with ASM currently.



Type Num Date Name Item Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Check 5/13/2021 Key Bank Operating -312.97

Bank Fees -312.97 312.97

TOTAL -312.97 312.97

Check debit 5/24/2021 ACCE Key Bank Operating -262.09

Health Benefits -262.09 262.09

TOTAL -262.09 262.09

Check 1051 5/4/2021 Ohio PERS Key Bank Operating -3,876.93

PERS Retirement -3,876.93 3,876.93

TOTAL -3,876.93 3,876.93

Check 1052 5/4/2021 Fraunfelter Accou... Key Bank Operating -1,600.00

Accounting Fees -1,600.00 1,600.00

TOTAL -1,600.00 1,600.00

Check 1053 5/4/2021 Kelly Smith Key Bank Operating -123.09

Supplies -123.09 123.09

TOTAL -123.09 123.09

Check 1054 5/4/2021 Bricker and Eckler Key Bank Operating -25,485.56

Legal Fees -2,751.81 2,751.81
Legal Fees -2,300.00 2,300.00
Legal Fees -13,250.00 13,250.00
Legal Fees -7,183.75 7,183.75

TOTAL -25,485.56 25,485.56

Check 1055 5/4/2021 LWC Incorporated Key Bank Operating -3,000.00

Outside Contract Se... -3,000.00 3,000.00

TOTAL -3,000.00 3,000.00

12:41 PM Montgomery County Convention Facilities Authority
06/14/21 Check Detail

May 2021

Page 1



Type Num Date Name Item Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Check 1056 5/4/2021 Oracle Elevator Key Bank Operating -9,860.00

Maintenance and R... -9,860.00 9,860.00

TOTAL -9,860.00 9,860.00

Check 1057 5/4/2021 Peck Heating AC &... Key Bank Operating -6,602.00

Maintenance and R... -6,602.00 6,602.00

TOTAL -6,602.00 6,602.00

Check 1058 5/4/2021 Moonlight Security... Key Bank Operating -722.43

Security -722.43 722.43

TOTAL -722.43 722.43

Check 1059 5/4/2021 Solid Blend WMS Key Bank Operating -4,618.00

Maintenance and R... -4,618.00 4,618.00

TOTAL -4,618.00 4,618.00

Check 1060 5/4/2021 A-1 Able Pest Doct... Key Bank Operating -300.00

Maintenance and R... -300.00 300.00

TOTAL -300.00 300.00

Check 1061 5/4/2021 Hobart Service Key Bank Operating -12,260.90

Maintenance and R... -12,260.90 12,260.90

TOTAL -12,260.90 12,260.90

Check 1062 5/4/2021 Koorsen Fire and ... Key Bank Operating -1,019.20

Maintenance and R... -1,019.20 1,019.20

TOTAL -1,019.20 1,019.20

Check 1063 5/4/2021 Sign Dynamics Key Bank Operating -2,647.50

Equip Rental and M... -2,647.50 2,647.50

TOTAL -2,647.50 2,647.50

12:41 PM Montgomery County Convention Facilities Authority
06/14/21 Check Detail

May 2021

Page 2



Type Num Date Name Item Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Check 1064 5/13/2021 Best Plumbing Sp... Key Bank Operating -14,891.85

Maintenance and R... -14,891.85 14,891.85

TOTAL -14,891.85 14,891.85

Check 1065 5/13/2021 Harborlink Networ... Key Bank Operating -8,043.50

Maintenance and R... -8,043.50 8,043.50

TOTAL -8,043.50 8,043.50

Check 1066 5/13/2021 Grunder Landscap... Key Bank Operating -1,020.00

Equip Rental and M... -1,020.00 1,020.00

TOTAL -1,020.00 1,020.00

Check 1067 5/13/2021 U! Creative Key Bank Operating -1,250.00

Marketing -1,250.00 1,250.00

TOTAL -1,250.00 1,250.00

Check 1068 5/13/2021 Miami Industrial Tr... Key Bank Operating -770.00

Maintenance and R... -770.00 770.00

TOTAL -770.00 770.00

Check 1069 5/13/2021 CBD Advisors Key Bank Operating -1,000.00

Outside Contract Se... -1,000.00 1,000.00

TOTAL -1,000.00 1,000.00

Check 1070 5/14/2021 Payroll Key Bank Operating -7,270.22

Salary -5,384.62 5,384.62
Medicare -77.15 77.15
Payroll Processing ... -39.90 39.90
Contract Support St... -1,150.00 1,150.00
Contract Support St... -682.50 682.50
Health Benefits 63.95 -63.95

TOTAL -7,270.22 7,270.22

12:41 PM Montgomery County Convention Facilities Authority
06/14/21 Check Detail

May 2021

Page 3



Type Num Date Name Item Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Check 1071 5/28/2021 Payroll Key Bank Operating -6,935.22

Salary -5,384.62 5,384.62
Medicare -77.15 77.15
Payroll Processing ... -39.90 39.90
Contract Support St... -1,287.50 1,287.50
Contract Support St... -210.00 210.00
Health Benefits 63.95 -63.95

TOTAL -6,935.22 6,935.22

Check 0528... 5/28/2021 KeyBank Key Bank Operating -16,799.00

Maintenance and R... -13,883.00 13,883.00
Conference, Conve... -40.00 40.00
Maintenance and R... -631.51 631.51
Supplies -159.00 159.00
Travel -353.71 353.71
Travel -207.48 207.48
Membership Dues -69.00 69.00
Meals -105.99 105.99
Equip Rental and M... -667.01 667.01
Travel -9.50 9.50
Office Furniture -359.66 359.66
Facilities and Equip... -313.08 313.08
Supplies -0.06 0.06

TOTAL -16,799.00 16,799.00

12:41 PM Montgomery County Convention Facilities Authority
06/14/21 Check Detail

May 2021

Page 4



 

 

EXHIBIT E 



Revised 2021 Budget - MCCFA

Current Revised
Revenues 2021 2021 Change

City of Dayton Hotel Tax Contribution (1) 231,456         231,456         -                
MCCFA Lodging Tax 3%  (2) 1,227,859     1,227,859     -                
Food and Beverage 337,808         524,850         187,042       Updated per the ASM budget

Food & Beverage Direct Costs (220,437)       Updated per the ASM budget
Food and Beverage - Pepsi Contribution 333                333               Updated per the ASM budget

Agreement Support funds 15,000           
Audio Visual 91,205           91,205         Updated per the ASM budget
Events/Rental Income (includes City held deposits) 265,631         161,695         (103,936)      Updated per the ASM budget

Rental Income allocated expenses (27,080)         Updated per the ASM budget
DCC Leases 92,664           70,389           (22,275)        
ASM Contribution - Capital 500,000         500,000       
Other 62,492           62492 Updated per the ASM budget

Total Revenues 2,155,418     2,637,762     714,861       

Expenses
     Personnel Services

Salary 140,000         140,000         -                
Retirement 33,600           41,300           7,700            Includes Jennifer
Medicare 2,030             2,030             -                
Other Benefits 1,700             6,336             4,636            Includes Jennifer
Assistant to ED (9m in 2021) 37,503           52,000           14,497         Kelly and Jennifer

-                
    Purchased Services -                

Professional Services -                
Legal 90,000           90,000           -                
Accounting 10,000           25,000           15,000         
Contracted Employees for cleaning 5,000             5,000            
Hotel Tax Collection Software 15,100           15,100         
Hotel Tax Collection Fee - Forte (est $60/m) 36,836           540                (36,296)        
Promotional Services/Advertising 20,000           25,000           5,000            
Payroll and Bank Fees 5,000             5,000             -                
Other 5,000             5,000             -                

Insurance -                
Directors and Officials 3,500             2,800             (700)              
General Liability 25,000           85,275           60,275         
Bonds 1,500             1,500             -                
Additional Insurance Coverages (Cyber) 3,000             

Convention Center Operation Balance 780,000         354,281       Updated per the ASM budget
Wages and Benefits 573,495         
Utilities 23,380           
Repairs and Maintenance 106,444         
Contracted Services 104,700         
Other 302,680         
ASM Venue Management - Food/Bev (4%) 68,582           
ASM Venue Management - Base 125,000         80,000           

   Materials and Supplies -                
Office Related -                

Laptop 3,500             3,500             -                
Supplies 2,000             3,000             1,000            
COVID Supplies 10,000           10,000         
Dues 10,000           10,000           -                
Conferences and travel 10,000           10,000           -                
Website 5,000             5,000             -                

  Other Expenses -                
Special Assessments 65,000           65,000           -                
City of Dayton Debt -                
  Energy Conservation QCB -                

Principal 120,000         120,000         -                
Interest 30,627           30,627           -                

Contingency 50,000           50,000           -                

Total Expenses 1,612,796     2,071,289     455,493       

Net Income 542,622     566,473     259,368    



 

 

EXHIBIT F 



 
16086523v3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
CONVENTION FACILITIES 

AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 

PROCUREMENT POLICIES 
 
 
 
 
 

Dated 
February 4, 2021 

 

BRICKER REVIEW COMMENTS 05.8.2021 



 

16086523v3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I. Introduction 
 Purpose 
 Mission 
 Scope 
 Exceptions 
 Ethics in Purchasing 

 
II. Procurement Process 

 Purchase Order 
 Procurement Controls 
 Approval Process 
 Segregation of Duties 
 Vendor Diversity 
 Vendor Selection 

 
III. Purchasing Thresholds 
 
IV. Non-Competitive Procurements 

 Sole Source Procurement 
 Emergency Procurement 
 Costs Under the Competitive Threshold 

 
V. Competitive Procurements 

 Request for Proposals 
 Quality-Based Selections 

 
VI. Guidelines for Promoting Sustainability Through the Purchasing Process

 
 



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

16086523v3 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
 PURPOSE 

This policy is intended to establish how the Montgomery County Convention Facilities Authority (MCCFA) 
or its Agent procures goods and services and enters into contracts. The overall purpose of procurement 
policies is to ensure that the MCCFA obtains the highest quality of goods and services at the lowest 
practical cost. Furthermore, the guidelines are aimed at streamlining the process of procurement while 
maintaining adequate controls. These procedures apply to all staff involved in the procurement and to all 
types of procurement. 
 
THIS POLICY SERVES TO APPLY OHIO LAWS GOVERNING CONVENTION FACILITIES 
AUTHORITIES (R.C. CHAPTER 351), THEIR CONTRACTING AUTHORITY (R.C. 2921.41 AND R.C. 
SECTIONS 307.86 et seq.), AND RESTRICTIONS PLACED ON PUBLIC OFFICIALS (R.C. CHAPTER 
102).  IN ANY INSTANCE IN WHICH THIS POLICY IS AT ODDS WITH THOSE CITED AREAS OF 
OHIO LAW, THE CITED SECTIONS OF OHIO LAW CONTROL OUR ACTIONS. 

 
 MISSION 

Considering the MCCFA fiduciary responsibilities, the purchaser must assure the promotion of full and 
open competition in all procurement activities. In doing so, the purchaser must balance economy, efficiency, 
expediency, and environmental impact, ensuring that Departments receive sufficient quality and quantities 
of goods and services, delivered at the correct time, fulfilling the facility's operating requirements. 

 
 SCOPE 

The scope of this purchasing policy covers the procurement of most goods and services. The policy covers 
contractual and purchase agreements between the MCCFA and other legal entities for anything to be 
purchased, leased, leased with an option or agreement to purchase, or constructed, including, but not limited 
to, any product, structure, construction, reconstruction, improvement, maintenance, repair, or service at a 
cost in excess of fifty thousand dollars, except as otherwise provided below or at law. The procurement 
function includes the initial agreement/purchase, changes, and re-negotiations.  

 
 EXCEPTIONS 

Consistent with R.C. 307.86 et seq., the provisions of this policy do not apply in the following instances or 
procurements:  
 

o The procurement is for services of an accountant, architect, attorney at law, physician, professional 
engineer, construction project manager, consultant, surveyor, or appraiser. 
 

o The purchase consists of supplies or a replacement or supplemental part or parts for a product or 
equipment owned or leased by the MCCFA, and the only source of supply for the supplies, part, or 
parts is limited to a single supplier. 
 

o The purchase consists of services related to information technology, such as programming services, 
that are proprietary or limited to a single source.  
 



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

8 
 

16086523v3 

o If permitted by law, a special emergency exists involving the health and safety of the people or their 
property. 

 

o The purchase is for property, including land, buildings, and other real property, leased for offices, 
storage, parking, or other purposes, and all of the following apply: 
 
(a) The MCCFA is authorized by the Revised Code to lease the property. 
 
(b) The MCCFA develops requests for proposals for leasing the property, specifying the criteria that 
will be considered prior to leasing the property, including the desired size and geographic location of 
the property. 
 
(c) The MCCFA receives responses from prospective lessors with property meeting the criteria 
specified in the requests for proposals by giving notice in a manner substantially similar to the 
procedures established for giving notice under R.C. Section 307.87. 
 
(d) The MCCFA negotiates with the prospective lessors to obtain a lease at the best and lowest price 
reasonably possible considering the fair market value of the property and any relocation and 
operational costs that may be incurred during the period the lease is in effect. 
 
With respect to the acquisition of such property, the MCCFA may use the services of a real estate 
appraiser to obtain advice, consultations, or other recommendations regarding the lease of property 
under this exception. 
 

o The purchase is for: 
 Printed copyright material including published books, maps, periodicals, and technical 

pamphlets (not including software for computer systems), except where a quantity purchase 
can realize more significant savings. 

 Subscriptions, dues, and memberships, and board member fees established during the budget 
process. 

 Reimbursements provided directly to individual citizens and employees. 
 
Purchases made under an exception to this policy are subject to 1st approval by the Fiscal Officer of the Board 
and 2nd approval by the MCCFA Executive Director. 
 
 ETHICS IN PURCHASING 

Each person involved in the procurement process must adhere to a high standard of ethics and compliance 
with the requirements and ethical obligations of public officials pursuant to R.C. Section 102.03. In addition, to 
the extent not in conflict with existing laws: 

 
o Cash 



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

8 
 

16086523v3 

It is never permissible for an MCCFA Employee, Official, or its Agent to accept a gift in cash, 
cash equivalents, gift cards, stocks, or other forms of marketable securities of any amount. 

 
o Prohibition Against Contractor- Based Contingent Fees 

It shall be unethical for a person to be retained, or to retain a person, to solicit or secure a 
MCCFA contract upon any agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, from a contractor, except for retention of bona fide employees or 
bona fide established commercial selling agencies to secure business. 

 
o Unauthorized Purchases 

No purchases of goods and services shall be made in the name of MCCFA, except as required for 
official use by the MCCFA. 

 
o Disclaimer of Responsibility for Improper Purchasing 

The MCCFA may disclaim responsibility and liability for any purchase, expenditure, or 
agreement for expenditure arising from a purchase made in its name by an unauthorized person 
or any person acting outside this policy or the authorization or delegation as provided in this 
policy. The expense of any such disclaimed transaction will become the personal liability of the 
individual who acted improperly. 

 
II. PROCUREMENT PROCESS 
 
o PURCHASE ORDER 

Each specific procurement procedure process to which this policy applies shall be initiated by purchase 
orders or request for proposal/request for qualifications and shall show detailed requirements for the item(s) 
requested.  

 
 Purchase Order Form Data: 

Each procurement requisition form requires the following information: 
 Complete item description, including manufacturer's name, product brand name, 

manufacturer’s model number, and product brand code number. 
 Quantities are required for each item listed on the procurement requisition. 
 Delivery dates and locations. 
 Accounting information to include department, cost code, and any additional accounting-

related data. 
 Indication of whether the item(s) are in the budget, or an emergency or unplanned 

expense. 
 Signature of the person preparing the purchase order. 
 The purchase order will be assigned an internal number for tracking and invoicing 

purposes. 
 
 PROCUREMENT CONTROLS 



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

8 
 

16086523v3 

o Goods and services will only be procured within approved budgets except in emergencies, which 
will be approved by the Executive Director. 

o The Executive Director will help conduct periodic checks on procurement activities to ensure they 
conform to budget guidelines. 

o It is the person's responsibility that signs the procurement requisition to verify that the correct item 
(s) have been received in the right quantities, the quality and price of goods are accurate, and that the 
goods delivered are secure and inventory records are updated. 

o Once confirmed, the packing slip will be forwarded to the Fiscal Officer to await the invoice. 
o Purchases under petty cash must not exceed the maximum amount established and documented by 

the Board Treasurer. 
 
 APPROVAL PROCESS 

o Once the purchase order is created, it is submitted to the Executive Director, Board Chairperson, or 
Finance Committee or its Agent for approval. All purchase orders must have one signature; the 
positions listed above have approval authority. Once approved, the purchase order is forwarded to 
the Fiscal Officer or its Agent for certification. Once certified, the purchase order is sent to the 
vendor, and the order is placed. 

 
 SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 

There will be proper segregation of duties to maintain internal controls between: 
o The Employee or its Agent places the order with the vendor. 
o The Employee or its Agent confirms that the goods supplied are correct. 
o The Employee or its Agent accepts the goods into the venue. 
o The Employee or its Agent that authorizes payment. 

 
 
 VENDOR DIVERSITY 

MCCFA and its Agent are committed to providing equal access and meaningful opportunities to all vendors 
and to promoting diversity including minority business enterprises as defined under R.C. Section 122.71 as 
authorized pursuant to R.C. Section 307.921, as well as women owned enterprises and veterans. Our 
mission is to maximize the inclusion of minority, women, veteran, and small disadvantaged business 
enterprises and individuals in our supply chain. If the supplier is not diverse, they may be asked to report on 
relevant subcontracting (Tier II) activity with diverse suppliers. Supplier shall submit these reports at the 
frequency specified by MCCFA or its Agent. 

 
o Company Ownership 

• Is your company publicly or privately held? 
 Public Company     ________  
• Private Company   ________ 

o If your company is publicly held, please provide the stock symbol that your 
company’s stock is traded under. 

   
• Please fill out the table below as it applies to your company’s diversity status   

 Women Business Enterprise (>=51% owned and controlled)  Yes / No  



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

8 
 

16086523v3 

 Minority Business Enterprise (>=51% owned and controlled)  Yes / No 
 Veteran Business Enterprise (>=51% owned and controlled)  Yes / No 
 Other (Specify)     
 If Diverse, is your business certified?     
 If certified, by which organization/council?    

 
 VENDOR SELECTION 

In evaluating vendor bids, MCCFA or its Agent may consider the following in conjunction with the 
requirements set out in R.C. 307.862 (when applicable): 

o Bidder’s price. 
o Confirmation that bidder item specifications match the purchase order or that an acceptable pre-

approved substitution is provided. 
o Bidder’s ability to perform within the specified time limits. 
o Bidder’s previous records of performance and service. 
o Bidder’s ability to meet other terms and conditions, including insurance and bond requirements. 
o Payment terms. 
o Bidder's availability to provide future service, maintenance, and support. 
o Nature and size of the bidder. 
o Bidder's ability to provide samples and a warranty if applicable. 
o Contract provisions are acceptable to MCCFA. 
o Any other factors that the MCCFA determines are relevant in connection with the given project or 

scope of work. 
 
III. PURCHASING THRESHOLDS 
 
 For goods and services applicable to this policy which are below $2,500, the MCCFA shall obtain goods 

and services most advantageous to the organization by directly using a purchase order with a minimum of 
one written quote. 

 
 For goods and services applicable to this policy between $2,501 and $15,000, the MCCFA shall obtain at 

least three written quotes. 
 

 For goods and services applicable to this policy between $15,001 and $49,999, MCCFA or its Agent shall 
obtain at least three written quotes. If three written quotes are not received, a written justification is 
required. 
 

 For goods and services applicable to this policy above $50,000, MCFFA or its Agent will use a formal 
Request for Proposal (RFP) procurement process. 
 

 For professional services applicable to this policy which are below $5,000, MCCFA shall obtain goods and 
services most advantageous to the organization by directly using a purchase order with a minimum of one 
written bid. 
 



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

8 
 

16086523v3 

 For professional services applicable to this policy between $5,001 and $15,000, MCCFA shall obtain at 
least three written quotes. 
 

 For professional services applicable to this policy between $15,001 and $49,999, MCCFA or its Agent shall 
obtain at least three written quotes. If three written quotes are not received, a written justification is 
required. 
 

 For all professional services above $50,000, the MCCFA or its Agent will use a formal Request for Proposal 
(RFP) procurement process. 

 

= 
GOODS AND SERVICES 

$ Threshold Purchasing Method Responsibility 
=/> $50,000 Formal RFP Process Executive Director or 

MCCFA Agent 
$15,001 - $49,999 Three (3) Written Quotes MCCFA or its Agent 
$2,501 - $15,000 Three (3) Written Quotes MCCFA  

<$2,500 One (1) Written Quote MCCFA 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
$ Threshold Purchasing Method Responsibility 
=/> $50,000 Formal RFP Process Executive Director or 

MCCFA Agent 
$15,001-$49,999 Three (3) Written Quotes MCCFA or its Agent 
$5,001 - $15,000 Three (3) Written Quotes User Department 

< $5,000 One (1) Written Quote User Department 
 
 COSTS UNDER THE COMPETITIVE THRESHOLD 

o The applicable User Department of the MCCFA may acquire Goods and Services by Direct 
Negotiation or by some other non-competitive method when the dollar value of the purchase does 
not exceed $2,500, and a properly executed and authorized purchase order is received, and other 
factors considered. The User Department may acquire Professional Services by Direct Negotiation 
or by some other non-competitive method when the dollar value of the purchase does not exceed 
$5000, and an adequately executed purchase order is received. Under this non-competitive method, 
the User Department shall attempt to obtain the Goods and Services and Professional Services most 
advantageous to the MCCFA or its Agent. 

 
IV. COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENTS 
 
Formal Solicitations will generally be solicited on a project-by-project basis in compliance with the 
requirements of R.C. 307.862. 



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

8 
 

16086523v3 

 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

o The RFP will contain all information required pursuant to R.C. Section 307.862, including the 
criteria to be considered and evaluated as the basis of the award. 
 

o Proposals submitted by Responsible and Responsive Proposers are evaluated by a Standing or 
Special Committee, based upon the criteria applicable to the RFP, and presented to the Board for 
final approval. All submissions (or the most acceptable proposals at the discretion of the committee 
evaluating proposals) will be ranked in order of their acceptability to the MCCFA or its Agent 
considering the criteria. The MCCFA or its Agent has no obligation to award the Contract to the 
Proposer who proposes the lowest price. 
 

o The MCCFA or its Agent reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals, waive any 
informalities or irregularities of proposals, request clarification of information submitted in any 
proposal, and further negotiate with a Responsive and Responsible Proposer who has been selected 
for Contract award or to reject any or all proposals for any reason whatsoever. 
 

o The Contract award will be awarded, if the award is made, by the MCCFA or its Agent to the 
Responsive and Responsible Proposer whose proposal is determined, in the Authority's exclusive 
discretion, to be the most advantageous to the MCCFA, taking into consideration price, 
qualifications, and other factors as indicated in the RFP. The RFP will contain the basis on which the 
award is to be made. 

 
 QUALITY BASED. SELECTIONS (RFQ) 

o Requests for Qualifications (RFQ) may be used when it is in the MCCFA’s best interest to evaluate 
the experience and qualifications of a Service provider, without regard to price or before considering 
the price.  
 

o The procedure for soliciting, opening, and evaluating statements of qualifications shall be the same 
as described herein for a request for proposals. Service providers whose qualifications meet the 
criteria established in the Request for Qualifications, at the sole discretion of the MCCFA or its 
Agent, may be considered for Contract award by participation in the completion of price negotiation. 
The MCCFA or its Agent shall attempt to negotiate a fee with the highest-ranked firm. If no 
agreement is reached, MCCFA or its Agent shall begin negotiations with the next highest-ranked 
firm. Negotiations will proceed in this manner until an agreement is reached. Alternatively, MCCFA 
or its Agent may, by Direct Negotiation, finalize terms with service providers who are selected for 
the award based on qualifications. MCCFA or its Agent reserves the right to reject any or all 
responses for any reason. The MCCFA or its Agent may request clarification of information. 
 

 
V. GUIDELINES FOR PROMOTING SUSTAINABILITY THROUGH THE PURCHASING 

PROCESS 
  



MONTGOMERY COUNTY CONVENTION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT POLICIES 

 

8 
 

16086523v3 

The MCCFA encourages the procurement of sustainable and environmentally preferred products and services. 
MCCFA and its Agent will take an active role to promote the analysis of life cycle costs for products and 
services to encourage the protection of the environment by considering sustainable products and services for use 
in MCCFA operations.   
 
 In general, environmentally preferable products and services are those that would reduce negative effects on 

human health and the environment when compared with the competing products and services. 
 
 In practice, the objective is to consider products that have been environmentally certified or eco-labeled 

because they have reduced environmental impact due to the way they are made, used, transported, stored, 
packaged, and disposed of.  

 
 Reports will be provided to MCCFA Executive Director on an annual basis to track the procurement of 

sustainable and environmentally preferred products. 


	Revised 2021 Budget.pdf
	Sheet1

	May 2021 Bank Rec.pdf
	May Budget-Actual.pdf
	Sheet1





